
 

 
Sierra County Commission 
Albert J Lyon Event Center 

2953 S Broadway St, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 
Tuesday May 21st, 2024 

 
ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE ABLE TO WATCH AND LISTEN TO THE MEETING VIA: 

(https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100068317226897) (Local radio KCHS 101.9) 
 
 
Call to Order: 10:00 AM Regular Meeting 
 
Roll Call:      Travis Day-Chairman                Shelly K. Trujillo-Clerk 

        James E. Paxon-Vice-Chair   Nance, Pato & Stout, LLC-Attorney 
       Hank Hopkins -Commissioner               Amber Vaughn-County Manager 

 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
New Mexico State Flag Pledge-I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico and the Zia symbol of perfect 
friendship among united cultures. 
 

Introduction of Guests 
 

I. Approval of Agenda 
II. Approval of Minutes  

A. Special Meeting – March 26th, 2024 
B. Regular Meeting – April 16th, 2024 

III. Public Comment: Limited to 3 Minutes  
IV. Consent Agenda: 

A. Resolution No. 110-241 Accounts Payable 
B. Resolution No. 110-243 Indigent Claims 
C. Indigent Burial B2024-007 

V. Presentations/Reports: 
A. Years of Service Awards 
B. Department Reports 

VI. Board of Finance: 
A. April Reconciliation  

VII. Old Business:  
VIII. New Business: 

A. Petition for Road Vacation: Appointment of Sharon Luna, LaNeer Wrye and Bruce Swingle 
as Freeholders to view the request to vacate a portion of Tulalosa Rd near Engle with Ronnie 
Chavez and Travis Luna as an alternate 

B. Donation of Bullard Tac Sight S1 Thermal Imager to Catron County Sheriff’s Office  
C. Land Use Updates 

IX. Contracts-Agreements-Procurement: 
A. Audit Contract FY 23/24-Patillo, Brown & Hill, LLP 
B. ITB #2024-03-017-855 Van Patten Interior Remodel- Awarded Low Bid- RY Construction, 

LLC 



 
C. Work and Financial Plan Between Sierra County and United States Department of 

Agriculture Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service Wildlife Services (APHIS-WS) for 
July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 

D. Memorandum of Understanding between Office of the Secretary of State and Sierra County  
X. Resolutions-Ordinances-Proclamations: 

A. Resolution No. 110-242 Budget Adjustment 
B. Resolution No. 110-244 A Resolution Confirming Sierra County to Participate in the New 

Mexico Department of Transportation Project Fund Call for Projects – Sugar Sand Bridge 
C. Resolution No. 110-245 A Resolution Appointing Members of County Valuation and Protest 

Board 
D. Resolution 110-246 Adopting FY 25 Preliminary Budget  
E. Resolution 110-247 Accepting and Approving the FY 2022-23 Audit 
F. Proclaiming May to be Motorcycle Awareness Month 

XI. Executive Session (Section 10-15 E thru H): 
Pending and Threatened Litigation: 

• BoCC v. Desert Springs Produce, LLC 
Personnel 
Real Estate: 

XII. Open Session Actions from Executive Session:  
A. Direction to Counsel/Staff re BoCC v. Desert Springs Produce, LLC 
B. Adjourn 
 

 
Next proposed Scheduled Meeting: Regular Meeting, Tuesday, June 25th, 2024, at 10:00 AM. Items for 
the agenda must be submitted to the Sierra County Administration Office no later than 5:00pm on the 
Monday the week before the meeting. 
 

 
If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or 
meeting please contact the Sierra County Manager, at 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6215 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible.  
Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible formats. 
Please contact the Sierra County Manager if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 
 
 



 

      
          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
        MARCH 26, 2024 

 
   

CALL TO ORDER: 10:00 A.M. 
 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Special Session at 
10:00 A.M. on Tuesday, March 26, 2024, at the Sierra County Commission 
Chambers, 1712 N Date, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
 

 Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
            Commissioner Travis Day, Chair 
 Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
  
 Clerk of Board: Shelly Trujillo  
 
 County Attorney: Dave Pato-Absent 
           
 County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Jessica West, Josh Baker, Christie Conklin-Sentinel 
             

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT: LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS/REPORTS: 
 

VI. BOARD OF FINANCE: 



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
March 26, 2024 
Page 2   

 

 
VII. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A.  Canvass of the 2024 Truth or Consequences Special Election 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Canvass of the 2024 

Truth or Consequences Special Election as presented.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner 
Districts 1-2-3 voting yes.  

      
IX. CONTRACTS – AGREEMENTS – PROCUREMENT 

 
   X. RESOLUTIONS – ORDINANCES – PROCLAMATIONS: 

 
  XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION SECTION (10-15-1E THRU H): 

 
   XII. OPEN SESSION ACTIONS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 
 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT REGULAR SIERRA COUNTY 

COMMISSION MEETING: May 24, 2022 
 
The date and time of the next Regular Sierra County Commission Meeting 
has been scheduled for Tuesday, April 16, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. at the Sierra 
County Commission Chamber at 1712 N Date, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico. 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting.  Commission Vice-
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.    
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
March 26, 2024 
Page 3   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 26th day of March 2024. 
 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 

   
 



          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

        APRIL 16, 2024 

CALL TO ORDER:   10:00 am Regular Meeting 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Regular Session 
at 10:00 A.M. on Tuesday, April 16, 2024, at the Sierra County Commission 
Chambers, 1712 N Date Street, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 

ROLL CALL: 

Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 

Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member-Absent 

Clerk of Board: Shelly K. Trujillo 

County Attorney: David Pato 

County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 

 Tim Kuzdrowski, Ruben Lucero, Billy Neeley, Shane Atwell, Michelle 
Atwell, Keith Whitney, Kayce Edwards, Bret Mellott, Josh Baker, Jessica 
West 

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.
Commission Chair Day SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with
Commissioners District 1-2 voting yes.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

A. Regular Meeting-March 19, 2024

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the minutes as amended.  
Commission Chair Day SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioners District 1-2 voting yes.  



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
April 16, 2024 
Page 2   

 

 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT: LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES 

 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
A.  Resolution No. 110-235- Accounts Payable 
 
B.  Resolution No. 110-237- Indigent Claims 
 
C.  Indigent Burial B2024-006 
 
D.  Claim of Exemption 24-003 (Smith) 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  Commission Chair Day SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2 voting yes. 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS/REPORTS: 
 
A.  Years of Service award 
B.  Department Reports 
C.  Assessor Yearly Report-See Attached 
D.  Patillo, Brown & Hill LLC-Auditor Report-See Attached 
E.  Spaceport America Update-See Attached 
 

VI. BOARD OF FINANCE: 
 

A.  March Reconciliation 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the March 
Reconciliation as presented.  Commission Chair Day SECONDED the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioners District 1-2 voting yes.  

 
VII. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A.  Summary Replat of Seco Creek Estates, Unit 2 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Summary Replat of Seco 

Creek Estates, Unit 2.  Commission Chair Day SECONDED the motion. 
Motion carries with Commissioners District 1-2 voting yes. 

     
IX. CONTRACTS – AGREEMENTS – PROCUREMENT 

 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
April 16, 2024 
Page 3   

 

A.  Joint Powers Agreement between the Sierra County Sheriff’s Office and 
the Village of Williamsburg for the Provisions of Law Enforcement Services 
for the Village of Williamsburg 

   
   Commissioner Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Joint Powers 

Agreement between the Sierra County Sheriff’s Office and the Village of 
Williamsburg for the Provisions of Law Enforcement Services for the Village 
of Williamsburg as presented.  Commission Chair Day SECONDED the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2 voting yes. 

 
 

X. RESOLUTIONS – ORDINANCES – PROCLAMATIONS 
 

A.  Resolution No. 110-236-Budget Adjustments 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-236-
Budget Adjustments as presented.  Commission Chair Day SECONDED the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2 voting yes. 
 
B.  Resolution No. 110-238-Resolution in Support of the Creation of Sierra 
County Arroyo Flood District  
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-238-
Resolution in Support of the Creation of Sierra County Arroyo Flood 
District as presented.  Commission Chair Day SECONDED the motion.  
Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2 voting yes. 
 
C.  Resolution 110-239-Resolution Requesting Revision to USDA Wildlife 
Services Evidentiary Standards to consider All Reasonable Evidence in 
Conducting Mexican Wolf Depredation Investigations 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution 110-239-
Resolution Requesting Revision to USDA Wildlife Services Evidentiary 
Standards to consider All Reasonable Evidence in Conducting Mexican Wolf 
Depredation Investigations as presented.  Commission Chair Day 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2 
voting yes. 
 
D.  Resolution No. 110-240-Supporting the Use of the Lookout Mountain 
Electronics Site to Improve County Emergency Communications 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-240-
Supporting the Use of the Lookout Mountain Electronics Site to Improve 
County Emergency Communications as presented.  Commission Chair Day 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2 
voting yes.  



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
April 16, 2024 
Page 4   

 

 
 

  XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION SECTION (10-15-E THRU H): 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to go into Executive Session for 

Personnel, Real Estate, Pending and Threatened Litigation.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Roll call vote was taken with all 
Commissioners present voting yes.   
 
            District 1 – Yes 
 District 2 – Yes 
 District 3 – Absent 

 
            PENDING AND THREATENED LITIGATION: 
 

1. BoCC v. Woolf 
2. BoCC v. Desert Springs Produce 
3. BoCC v NMCIA re: Assessments 

                                                                
           PERSONNEL: 
      
            REAL ESTATE:  
 
            DISPOSAL OF REAL PROPERTY 
 
            XII. OPEN SESSION ACTIONS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to come back into Regular Session.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Roll call vote was taken, 
with all Commissioners present voting yes. 

 
 

 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT REGULAR SIERRA COUNTY 
COMMISSION MEETING:  
 
The date and time of the next Regular Sierra County Commission Meeting 
has been scheduled for Tuesday, May 21, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. at The Albert J 
Lyon Event Center, 2953 S Broadway, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico.   
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 
Commission Chair Day SECONDED the motion.    
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
April 16, 2024 
Page 5   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 16th day of April 2024. 
 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner James E Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 
 
 

   
 





















































































































































































































    
  

     

    

    

   

   

    

     

  

  

  

 
  

  



 

 

  
  

    
   

  

   
 

   
     
   
  
  

  

   

    

    

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    

    

  

 

  
   

 



   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
     

   
         

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
  
    

 

    

  

                  

                   

               

                    

              

         

                

   

 

 
 

  

 
 

  





   
   

 
   

 
  

 

  

  

    
    

        

     

   

        

             

 
               

   

         

                   
               

              

    
   

   
         

  

  





























































































Agreement Number: 24-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
 

WORK AND FINANCIAL PLAN 
between 

 SIERRA COUNTY  
and 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE 

WILDLIFE SERVICES (APHIS-WS) 
for 

July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 
 

 
Pursuant to Cooperative Service Agreement No. 24-73-35-2390-RA between the county of Sierra 
and APHIS-WS, this Work Plan defines the objectives, plan of action, resources, and budget for the 
maintenance of an Integrated Wildlife Damage Management (IWDM) program to protect residents, 
property, livestock, crops, and natural resources from damage caused by predators and other 
nuisance wildlife to be conducted from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. 
 
USDA-WS is a federal agency with a broad mission that includes carrying out wildlife damage 
management activities. USDA-WS has continuously maintained an effective IWDM program to 
resolve conflicts with wildlife throughout New Mexico, including Sierra County. USDA-WS is 
available and qualified to conduct wildlife damage management services as necessary to accomplish 
the County’s goals. 
 
 
I. OBJECTIVES/GOALS 
 
Wildlife Services’ overall goal is to maintain a biologically-sound IWDM program to assist 
property owners, businesses, private citizens, and governmental agencies in resolving wildlife 
damage problems and conduct control activities in accordance with applicable Federal, State, and 
local laws and regulations.  Assistance may be in the form of providing technical assistance or 
direct control activities.  Recommendations and control activities will ensure long term solutions 
and incorporate the Integrated Wildlife Damage Management approach.   
 
The scope of this program is limited only by the financial resources allocated by the cooperator and 
APHIS-WS.  Although successful elimination of any specific threat is not guaranteed, all reasonable 
efforts will be made to resolve or mitigate human-wildlife conflicts within financial and regulatory 
constraints. 
 
 
II. PLAN OF ACTION 
 
To accomplish this goal, the following general field services will be provided: 
 
Non-lethal application – this will be the primary consideration.  
  
Technical Assistance – WS will provide technical support to Sierra County on other issues that 



Agreement Number: 24-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
may impact predatory and/or nuisance species control including habitat modifications, response 
design, and recommendations through demonstration and instruction of wildlife damage prevention 
and/or control techniques 
 
Predator Identification & Removal - when livestock, crop or natural resource damage is verified  
 
Nuisance Wildlife Removal - when property damage is verified  
 
Removal of Wildlife Displaying Aggressive Behavior - causing actual injury to county residents.  
 
Outreach – include meeting with the constituents of the county, school group demonstrations, and 
predator/damage awareness training.  
 
To provide these basic services, APHIS-WS will: 
 

1. Assign one Wildlife Biological Technician per the period of performance for this Work 
Financial Plan averaging at least 1040 hours per year, distributed among direct control 
activities, technical assistance, USDA/WS-required administrative tasks, and annual leave.   

 
2. Procure and maintain a vehicle, tools, supplies, and other specialized equipment as deemed 

necessary by the State Director to accomplish the objectives identified in this plan. 
 

3. Implement at least two attempts to resolve requests for assistance using non-lethal methods, 
on site and on separate days, before resorting to lethal methods, unless the animal poses an 
imminent threat to human health and safety, property, livestock, companion animals or is 
part of confirmed depredation(s). 

 
4. Safely & professionally utilize approved wildlife damage management tools/equipment 

including firearms (including high-pressure air rifles), advanced optics, assorted snaring 
devices, trailing hounds, all-terrain vehicles, foot-hold traps for the protection of endangered 
species and public safety, cage-type & other specialized traps, deterrent methods/devices 
(including pyrotechnics), Environmental Protection Agency approved toxicants (including 
euthanasia drugs), night vision equipment and electronic calling devices.    

 
a. Field Specialists will ensure that the most effective, efficient, and humane tools will 

be utilized. All activities will be conducted in a safe manner. 
 

b. Equipment will be maintained in good working order to help prevent accidents 
and/or hazardous situations. 
 

c. Foot-hold traps with offset jaws will utilize pan tension devices sufficient to reduce 
the likelihood of capturing non-target species, be attached to an electronic 
monitoring device intended to notify Wildlife Services when a foot-hold trap is 
sprung. If such a device is not attached, Wildlife Services, Volunteers or the 
Requester will inspect each trap within twenty-four hours or less. 

 
d. When M-44 toxicants are used, at least two, three-foot tall warning signs in English 



Agreement Number: 24-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
and in Spanish shall be placed within five feet of the M-44 device to notify the 
public that poisonous devices are in the area, to alert them of the toxic nature of 
M-44’s, and warn of their danger to pets.   

 
5. Conduct all control activities with trained USDA-WS employees and volunteers. 

 
a. Technical Assistance may be in the form of recommendations for implementing 

various non-lethal techniques.  Official USDA/WS pamphlets and/or handouts may 
be used to convey this information to the public. 
 

b. Direct Control activities may include, but are not limited to the monitoring, trapping, 
dispersal, and shooting of known and potential predators or nuisance wildlife. 

 
6. Wildlife services shall submit quarterly reports to the county detailing the following: 

 
a. The type of land upon which contractual activities were carried on, such as BLM, 

county, municipal, military, private, or state, and the identity of the  
requesting entity other than the names of individuals, and the number of person-day 
visits per entity, 

 
b. The number of hours worked per employee, 

 
c. The number and types of species captured and by what method, and the number and 

types of species euthanized and by what method, 
 

d. The number and types of non-targeted, unintentional species euthanized, if any, 
 

e. The number and types of species re-located, freed, or dispersed, 
 

f. A damage summary, including reported and verified losses for 
 

i. Agriculture, 
ii. Health and safety. 

iii. Property, including animals, landscape, and structures, 
 

g. Number of outreach efforts by species provided or supported for the purpose of 
educating the public on how to coexist with wildlife and manage property in such a 
way to avoid wildlife conflicts, and the estimated or actual number of people 
reached, 
 

h. The number of requests for assistance by species and the reasons therefor, such as 
livestock protection, health, human safety, nuisance animal, or property protection, 
and, 
 

i. The results of any blood tests taken by species 
 



Agreement Number: 24-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
 
USDA-WS will cooperate with the New Mexico Department of Game and Fish, the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service, County and local city governments, and other entities to ensure compliance with 
applicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations. 
 
 
III. PROCUREMENT 
 
Purchase of supplies, equipment and miscellaneous needs including salaries will be made by 
APHIS-WS.  All expenditures will be processed through APHIS’s Financial Management 
Modernization Initiative (FMMI) system and charged to the Cooperator as described in the 
Financial Plan. 
 
IV. STIPULATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
 

1. All operations shall have the joint concurrence of USDA-WS and Sierra County and shall be 
under the direct supervision of USDA-WS. All operations will adhere to the specific work 
financial plan requirements required by both USDA-WS and Sierra County. USDA-WS 
will conduct the program in accordance with its established operating policies and all 
applicable state and federal laws and county regulations and requirements.  
 

2. Control on Public Lands: An Agreement for Control of Animal Damage on Non-private 
Property (WS Form 12 A) or an appropriate NEPA document will be executed between 
USDA-WS and the public land administrator(s)/manager(s) before any USDA-WS work is 
conducted. 

  
3. USDA-WS will use only USDA-WS employees and volunteers. All USDA-WS personnel 

will follow WS Directive 2.510, which prohibits benefiting personally from any animals(s) 
whole or in part, taken while conducting official duties.  
 

4. The program will be supervised by District Supervisor Rudy Fajardo (575) 527-6980. 
Monitoring and authoritative oversight will be by the WS, New Mexico State Director, Jon 
Grant (505) 346-2640.  

 
5. In the absence of a finalized county budget, a letter of intent must be provided pending final 

budget approval. The cooperative Wildlife Services Program, due to Congressional Federal 
appropriations, law cannot continue unless a mutual agreement is negotiated by June 30, 
2024. 

 
 

6. COST ESTIMATE FOR SERVICES 
 
USDA-WS shall submit quarterly bills for actual costs incurred to USDA-WS for performance of  
 
work as delineated in the Work/Financial Plan, not to exceed $45,750.00 annually.  Such costs may 



Agreement Number: 24-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
include but are not limited to salaries/benefits/employees’ recognition, vehicle use, supplies, 
equipment, and USDA overhead. An estimate itemization of expenses are listed below; however, 
funds may be distributed between itemized categories as needed. 
 
 
Cost Element  Cost to 

Cooperator 
Cost Share 
(Paid by 
Federal 

Appropriations) 

Full Cost 

Personnel Compensation  $        35,869.12   $      27,990.93   $       63,860.05  
Travel  $             112.00   $        1,109.00   $         1,221.00  
Vehicles  $                    -     $      13,800.00   $       13,800.00  
Other Services  $                    -     $           800.00   $            800.00  
Supplies and Materials  $                    -     $        2,000.00   $         2,000.00  
Equipment  $                    -     $        2,730.64   $         2,730.64  

     

Subtotal (Direct Charges)  $        35,981.12   $      48,430.57   $       84,411.69  

     
Pooled Job Costs 11.00%  $          3,957.92   NA   $         3,957.92  
Indirect Costs 16.15%  $          5,810.95   NA   $         5,810.95  

Agreement Total                 $        45,750.00   $      48,430.57   $       94,180.56  
Percentage Cost Share  49% 51% 100% 

     
The distribution of the budget from this Financial Plan may vary as necessary to accomplish the 
purpose of this agreement, but may not exceed: $94,180.56 

 
In accordance with the Debt Collection Improvement Act (DCIA) of 1996, bills issued by WS are 
due and payable within 30 days of receipt.  The DCIA requires that all debts older than 120 days be 
forwarded to debt collection centers or commercial collection agencies for more aggressive action.  
Debtors have the option to verify, challenge and compromise claims, and have access to 
administrative appeals procedures which are both reasonable and protect the interests of the United 
States. 
                                 
The financial point of contact for this Work Plan/Financial Plan is Patsy Baca, Budget Analyst 
(505) 346-2640.  This plan has been approved by the USDA APHIS WS Western Regional Office 
for use in the State of New Mexico for cost-share agreements.  Copies of this approval are available 
upon request. 
 
Sierra County Point of Contact: 
Amber Vaughn (County Manager) Handling Finances 
(575) 894-6215 
Becky Mena (Finance Director) 
(575) 894-6215 



Agreement Number: 24-73-35-2390-RA 
WBS: AP.RA.RX35.73.0994 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COMISSIONERS 
Tax Identification Number:  856000251 
 
 
 
_______________________________               ___________________ 
Amber Vaughn      Date                  
County Manager       
 
 
 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE 
WILDLIFE SERVICES 
Albuquerque, NM 
Tax Identification Number:  41-0696271       
 
 
 
_______________________________               ___________________    
Jon Grant                            Date 
State Director, New Mexico          
   
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________               ___________________    
Wendy Anderson  
Western Region, New Mexico    Date      
 



































Resolution No.  110-242 
A Budget/Line-Item Adjustment Resolution Increase Revenue and Expense in 

Funds 500 

Whereas, the Board of Sierra County Commissioners, meeting in regular public 
session May, 21st, 2024, deem it necessary to increase in the said line items in the 
budget; 

Whereas, an increase in revenue for the MOU from the Secretary of State,  and an 
increase in expenses to expend funding from the MOU;  

Therefore Be It Resolved, that the Sierra County Board of Commissioners 
hereby move to implement the Iine item adjustments in the FY 2023-2024 
Operating Budget as described below: 

Increase Revenue: 
500-0 -1212 SOS-MOU Security $50,000.00 

Increase Expense : 
500-04-2234 SOS-MOU Security $50,000.00 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 21st DAY OF MAY 2024. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 

____________________________ 
ATTEST: TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 

____________________________ 
HANK HOPKINS COMMISSIONER 

State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

Shelly K. Trujillo 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

Joshua Baker 
County Sheriff 
575-894-9150

Tom Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-740-4900 

James Paxon 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Travis Day 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Amber Vaughn, County Manager 
575-894-6215 voice 575-894-9548 fax 

1712 N. Date, Suite D 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 



 
 
_____________________________ ____________________________ 
SHELLY K. TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK JAMES PAXON, COMMISSIONER 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 110-244 
 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING SIERRA COUNTY TO PARTICIPATE IN THE NEW 
MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT FUND CALL FOR 
PROJECTS  
 
WHEREAS, Sierra County allocates from its General Fund, as its local 5% match to State 
Funds; 
 
WHEREAS, Sierra County will have available funds representing the 5% local match of 
$375,000 for the proposed project which will be available when the agreement becomes 
effective, and; 
 
WHEREAS, Attachment “A” indicates the scope and locations of the proposed work. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, The Governing Body of Sierra County, 
New Mexico recommends that an application be filed with the New Mexico Department of 
Transportation for Sugar Sand Bridge Improvements. 
 

RESOLVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 21st day of May 2024. 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
 
_________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman 
Commissioner District 1 

 
 
_________________________ 
James E. Paxon, Vice Chairman 
Commissioner District 2 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner District 3 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 

 
 
 

       State of New Mexico       County of Sierra 

          Shelly Trujillo 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

    
  

 

Thomas Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-740-4900 

Travis Day,   
 Commission Chair 

575-894-6215 

James E. Paxon,               
Commission Vice-Chair 

575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215  

 
         Joshua Baker 

Sheriff 
575-894-9150 

 
 

Amber Vaughn 
County Manager 

575-894-6215 
1712 N Date St. Suite D 

Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A 
Scope of Work 

 
 
 
Project Name: Sugar Sand Bridge Replacement Construction 
 
 The project is a replacement of the existing single-lane bridge (Bridge #6680), known as Sugar Sand 
Bridge over the Rio Grande, with a new two-lane bridge. The project's design is currently being designed 
under Resolution No. 110-073 and funded by 5% County and 95% State TPF. The Scope of this next 
phase of work and resolutions would be for the construction and construction management, inspection, 
and testing for the new bridge, the respective roadway approach modifications, and associated utility 
relocations. The project is nearing 90% design early this summer and should be shovel-ready for a 
fall/winter/spring 2024/2025 construction.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 

COUNTY OF SIERRA 
RESOLUTION № 110-245 

 
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS OF  
COUNTY VALUATION AND PROTEST BOARD 

 
 WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners met upon notice of a regular 
meeting, duly published, at the Sierra County Administrative Offices, 1712 N. Date Street, Truth 
or Consequences, New Mexico 87901, on May 21, 2024; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Sierra exercises the 
powers of the County as a body politic and corporate pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-
1(1884); and,  

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 7-38-21 (2001) property owners have the 
right to protest the value or classification determined for their property for property taxation 
purposes; and,  

 
WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 7-38-25 (1997) provides in pertinent part that there 

shall be a county protest board in each county, to hear and decide protests of determinations made 
by county assessors & protested under Section 7-37-24 NMSA 1978, consisting of three voting 
members & three alternates who shall not hold any elective public office during the term of their 
appointment nor shall any such member or alternate be employed by the state, a political 
subdivision or a school district during the term of his appointment; and, 

 
WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 7-38-25 (1997) further provides that “one member and 

one alternate shall be a qualified elector of the county and shall be appointed by the board of county 
commissioners for a term of two years; one member and one alternate shall be a qualified elector 
of the county, shall have demonstrated experience in the field of valuation of property and shall be 
appointed by the board of county commissioners for a term of two years; and one member and one 
alternate shall be a property appraisal officer employed by the department, assigned by the director 
and shall be the chairman of the board.”  

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners 

hereby appoints the following members to the Valuation and Protest Board: 
 



Page 2 of 2 

Debbie Bell, NM Certified Appraiser 
Douglas Oaks, Private Investor       
NMTRD Property Tax Division Assignment 

Alternates 

Cathy Vickers, Realtor 
Gary Shinagel, NM Certified Appraiser 
NMTRD Property Tax Division Assignment 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this resolution repeals and replaces 
any previous resolutions of appointment for the Sierra County Valuation and Protest Board.  

RESOLVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 21st day of May 2024. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

_________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman 
Commissioner District 1 

_________________________ 
James E. Paxon, Vice Chairman 
Commissioner District 2 

_________________________ 
Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner District 3 

ATTEST: 

_________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 



SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION 110-246

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING FY 25 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners met upon notice of a regular meeting, duly 
published, at the Albert J. Lyons , 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901, 
on May 19, 2023; and,  

WHEREAS, the Governing Body in and for the County of Sierra, State of New Mexico has 
developed a Preliminary Budget for FY 25; and, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra 
County, hereby adopts the Preliminary Budget attached hereto, and respectfully requests approval 
from the Local Government Division of the Department of Finance Administration.  

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 21st  day of May 2024. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF SIERRA COUNTY 

______________________________________ 
 Travis Day, Chair 

______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chair 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

Attest: 



 
_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







COUNTY OF SIERRA 
RESOLUTION № 110-247

ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE FY 2022-23 AUDIT

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners met upon notice of a regular 
meeting, duly published, at the Sierra County Administrative Offices, 1712 N. Date Street, Truth 
or Consequences, New Mexico 87901, on May 21, 2024; and,  

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Sierra exercises the 
powers of the County as a body politic and corporate pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-
1(1884); and,  

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995) provides that Counties have the power 
to, “provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, 
order, comfort and convenience of any county or its inhabitants”; and, 

 WHEREAS, the County of Sierra is required by statute to contract with an independent 
auditor to perform the required annual audit for Fiscal Year End 2023; and, 

 WHEREAS, this audit has been completed per a letter issued by the Office of the State 
Auditor authorizing release of the FY 2022-23 audit; and, 

 WHEREAS, NMAC 2.2.2.10 (M)(4) provides in pertinent part that “{o}nce the audit 
report is officially released to the agency by the state auditor (by a release letter) and the required 
waiting period of five calendar days has passed, unless waived by the agency in writing, the audit 
report shall be presented by the IPA to a quorum of the governing authority of the agency at a 
meeting held in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, if applicable;” 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the governing body of Sierra County does 
hereby accept and approve the completed audit report and findings as indicated within this 
document.  

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 21st day of May 2024. 

Page 1 of 2 



Page 2 of 2 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman 
Commissioner District 1 

 
 
_________________________ 
James E. Paxon, Vice Chairman 
Commissioner District 2 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner District 3 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 

  
 
 

 
 



PROCLAMATION 
PROCLAMING MAY TO BE MOTORCYCLE 

AWARENESS MONTH 

WHEREAS, motorcycles are used as a regular means of transportation for commuting, 
touring and recreation in and around Sierra County, New Mexico; and 

WHEREAS, the Sierra County scenic roadways make motorcycling a very popular 
destination for riders from around the country; and 

WHEREAS, the safe operation of a motorcycle requires the use of acquired skills 
developed through a combination of training and experience, the use of good judgement, and 
thorough knowledge of traffic laws and licensing requirements; and 

WHEREAS, it is imperative that the residents of Sierra County be aware, show 
consideration and share the road with motorcycles on the streets and highways and recognize the 
importance of motorcycle safety; and 

WHEREAS, the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration has declared May as 
“Motorcycle Awareness Month”; it is the desire of this County Commission to join the NHTSA 
in raising awareness of the growing number of motorcyclists on Sierra County’s roadways in 
order to help prevent accidents and most importantly, save lives. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
COUNTY OF SIERRA DOES HEREBY ISSUE THIS PROCLAMTION to proclaim the 
month of May, 2024 to be MOTORCYCLE AWARENESS MONTH in Sierra County, and 
urge our citizens to be observant, courteous and knowledgeable about motorcycle usage in the 
community. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED AND PROCLAIMED this 21st day of May, 2024. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 

Jim Paxon, Chairman 

Travis Day, Vice-Chair 

Hank Hopkins, Commissioner Attest: 

Shelly K. Trujillo, Sierra County Clerk 



Page 3 of 3 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 21st day of May 2024. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

_________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman 
Commissioner District 1 

_________________________ 
James E. Paxon, Vice Chairman 
Commissioner District 2 

_________________________ 
Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner District 3 

ATTEST: 

_________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 


